
 

 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO 

 
Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-02418-MEH 

VICTOR CEJKA, JAMES WALKER, 
STEVEN WASCHER, JAMIE LYTLE, 
and PAUL CROSS, 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

VECTRUS SYSTEMS CORPORATION 
f/k/a EXELIS SYSTEMS CORPORATION,  
a Delaware corporation, 

Defendant. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Plaintiffs Victor Cejka, James Walker, Steven Wascher, Jamie Lytle and Paul Cross 

(collectively, “Plaintiffs”), by and through their attorneys, and for their Complaint and Jury 

Demand against Defendant Vectrus Systems Corporation f/k/a Exelis Systems Corporation 

(“Vectrus”) allege as follows: 

NATURE OF THE CASE 

1. This is an action for retaliatory termination.  Plaintiffs are highly trained and 

experienced security investigators who worked for Vectrus, a Department of Defense 

subcontractor, at the Bagram Air Base (“BAF”), located in Bagram, Afghanistan.  While at BAF, 

Plaintiffs discovered that a group of Vectrus employees were engaged in illegal and illicit 

activities that endangered the safety and security of those stationed at BAF.  
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2. Among other things, this cabal of Vectrus employees engaged in altering and 

deleting information in the U.S. Government’s biometric data system used for the tracking and 

identification of individuals and potential insurgents, selling of classified information for 

personal gain, taking improper actions to protect a Turkish contractor including interfering with 

investigations and giving advance warning of raids by the military, controlling drugs, alcohol 

and prostitutes on the military base, and transferring or terminating employees who would not 

cooperate with their illegal activities. 

3. Plaintiffs reported these illegal and illicit activities to superiors at Vectrus and to 

the U.S. Military.  In response, Vectrus personnel attempted to impede the military’s 

investigation by directing Plaintiffs not to cooperate with the military.  However, Plaintiffs 

continued to fulfill what they believed was their legal and moral duty to cooperate with the 

military’s investigation.  

4. During the August 2013 to November 2013 time frame, various military 

authorities investigated the wrongdoing Plaintiffs reported, including the Criminal Investigation 

Division, the U.S. Army Counterintelligence Unit, the Air Force Office of Special Investigations, 

and the Judge Advocates General’s office. 

5. At 2:00 a.m. on November 5, 2013, the military conducted a base-wide raid at 

BAF and apprehended eight Vectrus employees who were engaged in the wrongful behavior that 

Plaintiffs reported. 

6. After Plaintiffs reported the illegal and illicit actions to Vectrus and to military 

investigators, Vectrus management engaged in retaliatory conduct against them.  Vectrus 
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terminated or constructively terminated the employment of all five Plaintiffs in retaliation for 

their whistleblowing.   

7. Plaintiffs’ Compliant alleges claims against Vectrus for common law retaliatory 

termination (Count I); for violation of 10 U.S.C. § 2409, the Department of Defense 

whistleblower statute (Count II); and, by Plaintiffs Cross, Walker, and Wascher, for common law 

outrageous misconduct (Count III).   

THE PARTIES 

8. Plaintiff Victor Cejka (“Cejka”) is a resident and citizen of Stevens Point, 

Wisconsin. Cejka began working for Vectrus on August 13, 2012, as a security investigator in 

Vectrus’ Personnel Services Department at the Bagram Air Base (“BAF”), located in Bagram, 

Afghanistan.  Vectrus terminated Cejka on December 12, 2013, in retaliation for his 

whistleblowing. 

9. Plaintiff James Walker (“Walker”) is a resident and citizen of Pensacola, Florida.  

Walker began working for Vectrus in January 2013, as a security investigator at BAF in 

Afghanistan.  Vectrus constructively terminated Walker on July 12, 2014, in retaliation for his 

whistleblowing.  

10. Plaintiff Steven Wascher (“Wascher”) is a resident and citizen of Georgetown, 

Kentucky.  Wascher began working for Vectrus in January 2013, as a security investigator at 

BAF in Afghanistan.  Vectrus constructively terminated Wascher in June of 2014, in retaliation 

for his whistleblowing. 

11. Plaintiff Jamie Lytle (“Lytle”) is a resident and citizen of Marietta, Georgia.  

Lytle began working for Vectrus in August 2012, as a security investigator at BAF in 
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Afghanistan.  Vectrus terminated Lytle on December 12, 2013, in retaliation for his 

whistleblowing. 

12. Plaintiff Paul Cross (“Cross”) is a resident and citizen of Jacksonville, Florida.  

Cross began working for Vectrus in June 2010, as lead security investigator at BAF in 

Afganistan.  Vectrus terminated Cross on September 13, 2013, in retaliation for his 

whistleblowing. 

13. Vectrus, a subsidiary of Vectrus, Inc., is a Delaware corporation with its principal 

place of business located at 655 Space Center Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado.  Vectrus is a 

federal contractor that has numerous contracts and subcontracts with various departments of the 

federal government throughout the United States and abroad. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

14. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action by reason of 28 U.S.C. 

§ 1331, as this action arises under the laws of the United States, specifically 10 U.S.C. § 2409.  

This Court has supplemental subject matter jurisdiction over the substantially-related state 

common law tort claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a). 

15. This Court also has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. §1332(a) because there is complete diversity of citizenship between the parties and the 

amount in controversy with respect to each Plaintiff exceeds $75,000, exclusive of interest and 

costs.   

16. Venue in this district is appropriate pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b)(3) because 

Vectrus is a citizen of Colorado and subject to personal jurisdiction in this judicial district.  
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ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL COUNTS 

I. PLAINTIFFS ARE HIGHLY EXPERIENCED SECURITY INVESTIGATORS 

17. Cejka served in the United States Marine Corps Active Duty from June 2, 2003 to 

June 2, 2007, and he received an Honorable Discharge on June 2, 2011.  During his years of 

service in the Marine Corps, Cejka successfully completed numerous combat missions, including 

providing support in capturing High Value Targets.  Cejka’s military experience also included 

ensuring the personal security of over 240 detainees, providing personal security for highly 

ranked Commission Officers in combat zones, and manning security check points.  Cejka’s many 

awards and medals include:  

• Navy and Marine Corps Achievement Medal (Awarded 2 Times), one with 

combat “V” for distinguished actions in combat;  

• Combat Action Ribbon;  

• Marine Corps Good Conduct Medal;  

• Iraqi Campaign Medal;  

• Global War on Terrorism Expeditionary Medal;  

• National Defense Ribbon;  

• Global War on Terrorism Service Medal; and  

• Sea Service Deployment Ribbon. 

After leaving the Marine Corps and prior to working for Vectrus, Cejka served as a boat 

Patrol Officer with the Rome, Wisconsin Police Department from May 2008 to August of 2009. 

18. Walker has over 30 years of experience in law enforcement and security 

investigations.  In addition to his security work for Vectrus, Walker held the following positions:  
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• April 2012 to January 2013: Assistant Project Manager for Vt-SGI, responsible 

for security operations at 64 federal sites in the St. Louis area pursuant to a 

contract with the Department of Homeland Security, including overseeing 278 

armed security officers; 

• 2005 to 2008:  Captain in the Naval Security Forces (SGI), including serving as 

an Assistant Security Site Manager supervising rotating shifts of over 108 security 

officers at Naval Air Station Whiting Field and its 14 outlying fields; and 

• 1980 to 1996:  Officer with the Fort Walton Beach Police Department working 

with the Street Crimes Unit and investigating narcotics, vice and other high 

priority crimes. Walker also served as the counter-sniper on the department’s 

tactical unit. 

19. Wascher has over 20 years of experience in law enforcement and security 

investigations.  In addition to his security work for Vectrus, Wascher held the following 

positions:  

• December 2011 to December 2012: Director of Security for Anover Corporation; 

• May 2010 to June 2011: Security Investigator for Vectrus in Afghanistan; 

• October 2008 to May 2010:  Employed by AECOM/AGS as a weapons specialist 

in various cities in Afghanistan;  

• January 2007 to March of 2008:  Department of the Army Police Officer; 

• February 2005 to October 2006:  Employed by Eastern Solutions as a Project 

Manager in Kuwait, Iraq, and Afghanistan, with duties that included managing 

and executing convoy escorts, tactical asset transport, physical security 
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operations, force protection operations, and computer and information security 

procedures; 

• December 2004 to February 2005:  Developed and managed a security 

consultation company providing security and intelligence assessments and 

guidance in Kuwait and Iraq to local and federal law enforcement as well as U.S. 

Military units;  

• August 2003 to December 2004:  Deputy Project Manager for DEH Executive 

Protections Group, with job responsibilities that included developing, managing 

and executing security and intelligence operations in Kuwait and Iraq; 

• November 1999 to May 2003:  Security Police Officer with Combat Support 

Associates responsible for the management, training and execution of VIP and 

dignitary-related Executive Protection Missions; 

• July 1998 to November 1999:  Force Protection Officer and Security Police 

Officer for ITT Federal Services in Kuwait and Bahrain, with job responsibilities 

that included the force protection and physical security of designated U.S. 

Military installations, as well as the development, management, training and 

execution of VIP and dignitary-related Executive Protection Missions; and   

• August 1991 to May 1998:  Military Police Officer with the United States Army. 

20. Lytle served in the United States Army from July of 1997 until his Honorable 

Discharge as a Sergeant in January of 2006.  While in the Army, Lytle supervised military police 

forces of 10 soldiers, providing physical security, law enforcement and investigations at West 

Point, New York, and at Fort Hood, Texas.  From March 2006 to August of 2012, Lytle worked 
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in various security-related positions for the Pentagon Force Protection Agency, including as a 

Police Officer, a Field Training Officer and a Law Enforcement Officer.  

21. Prior to working for Vectrus, Cross worked for Kellogg, Brown & Root from 

January 2005 to June 2010 as a Force Protection Screener at BAF in Afghanistan.  Cross’s other 

experience includes: 

• May 2004 to September 2004:  Explosive Detector Dog Handler for DynCorp at 

Camp As Sayliyah, Doha, Qatar; 

• March 1987 to April 2004:  Sergeant First Class with the U.S. Army serving as a 

Military Police Detector Dog Handler, Team Leader, Special Reaction Team 

member, Military Police Investigator, Squad Leader and Platoon Sergeant in 

various states within the United States and numerous foreign countries; and  

• June 1982 to June 1986:  US Air Force Security Police Dog Handler in the United 

States and Japan. 

II. PLAINTIFFS’ EMPLOYMENT WITH VECTRUS 

22. Vectrus entered into a subcontract with Fluor Corporation (“Fluor”) to provide 

certain services to the Department of Defense at BAF, which is a U.S. military base inside a 

combat zone, and at other U.S. military bases in Afghanistan. Vectrus’ subcontract was 

subsequently amended or modified.  The Vectrus subcontract as amended or modified is referred 

to herein as the “Contract.”  Fluor has the prime contract with the Department of Defense. 

23. Plaintiffs were employed by Vectrus as security investigators in its Personnel 

Services Department at BAF.  Cross was the lead security investigator. 
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24. Cejka was assigned by Vectrus to the Contract, specifically its Logistics Civilian 

Augmentation Program (LOGCAP) IV Project Task Order 005 in Afghanistan (the “Program”), 

from August 13, 2012 until his termination on December 12, 2013.   

25. Walker was assigned by Vectrus to the Program from January 7, 2013 until his 

constructive termination on July 12, 2014.   

26. Wascher was assigned by Vectrus to the Program from January 2013 until his 

constructive termination in June 2014.   

27. Lytle was assigned by Vectrus to the Program from August 13, 2012 until his 

termination on December 12, 2013.   

28. Cross was assigned by Vectrus to the Program from June of 2010 until his 

termination on September 13, 2013. 

29. In the Summer and Fall of 2013, Plaintiffs were working together in the Vectrus 

Personnel Services Department at BAF as part of the Program.   

30. The Personnel Services security investigators at BAF, including Plaintiffs, were 

responsible for conducting interviews and investigations required for the issuance of badges and 

for maintaining the investigation information in the Biometric Automated Toolset (“BAT”) 

computer database.  The U.S. Government maintains the BAT database in conjunction with its 

European allies.  The biometric tracking and identification information that is maintained in the 

BAT system includes fingerprints, iris scans and facial photos.  The BAT system is critical to the 

U.S. Military’s efforts to combat insurgent forces in Afghanistan that are interspersed within an 

indigenous population.  The maintenance of accurate information in the BAT system is vital to 

the security of BAF and the U.S. Military’s other bases in Afghanistan. 
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31. According to the Fluor Desktop Guidelines, the duties of investigators are as 

follows: 

“Investigator. Conducts initial, bi-annual, and exit or directed interviews 
of host and foreign nationals who apply for or leave employment on US 
military installation; supervises Identification Card Office; enters data into 
biometric HUMINT screening database; collects biometrics and conduct 
enrollments; other duties as assigned/required within the FPSC operational 
realm; accurately complete the work and records associated with their 
work assignments as specified by this DTG and submit them to the 
Personnel Services Supervisor on a regular basis for review and approval.”  
(Exhibit A). 

32. The security investigators also are required to report to their supervisors and the 

military any possible criminal conduct or other threats to the safety or security of the base or 

personnel.  (See, e.g., Army Regulation 381-12, at 3-1; Department of Defense Directive 

5240.06, at Encl. 4; 10 U.S.C. § 802(a)(10).) 

33. In Summer 2013, the Vectrus Personnel Services Department at BAF (“FPSC”) 

was supervised by Cross in his capacity as lead investigator, who reported to Vectrus’s Senior 

Security Supervisor Brandon Spann (“Spann”), who in turn reported to Vectrus’s Regional 

Security Manager Kevin Daniel (“Daniel”), who ultimately reported to Vectrus’s Country 

Manager Richard Diaz (“Diaz”).   

34. The military oversight person for FPSC was Sergeant First Class John Salinas 

(“SFC Salinas”).   

III. PLAINTIFFS DISCOVER AND REPORT ILLEGAL AND ILLICIT ACTIVITIES 
BY VECTRUS EMPLOYEES 

35. Starting in August 2013, Plaintiffs observed Spann and other Vectrus employees 

engaging in security violations and other wrongful behavior.  Plaintiffs contemporaneously 

prepared a day-by-day timeline which describes in detail the activities they discovered and 
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actions they took to report the wrongdoing and assist the U.S. Military’s investigation of the 

wrongdoing by Vectrus employees. 

36. In August 2013, Plaintiffs discovered that Spann permitted an unauthorized 

person who did not have security clearance, a Fluor employee named James Brown (“Brown”), 

to participate in interviews, screenings and interrogations of Host Country Nationals and Third 

Country Nationals.   

37. Cross reported this information to Daniel, and Cross and Washer also reported it 

to military oversight, SFC Salinas. 

38. In August 2013, Plaintiffs also discovered that an investigation report on BAT 

prepared by Wascher had been altered to remove the information that had been provided by 

Daniel pertaining to a sexual relationship one of his friends was having with the target of the 

investigation as well as other information that implicated members of Vectrus management or 

their friends. 

39. Wascher reported this incident to the lead investigator, Cross, who reported it to 

Spann and Daniel and instructed Wascher to resubmit a complete report.  However, Spann 

reprimanded Cross and ordered him and the other investigators to stop any discussions of 

deletions or alterations on BAT.   

40. Plaintiffs did some further review and learned that other investigation reports had 

been either deleted from BAT or altered.  They reported this to Spann but no action was taken.  

Tampering with investigation reports was a very serious violation because it compromised the 

integrity of the BAT system, which threatened the security at BAF and the other U.S. military 

bases in Afghanistan.   
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41. In addition to reporting this information to Spann, Plaintiffs also reported it to 

military oversight, SFC Salinas.   

42. In early September 2013, Salinas initiated a military investigation and Wascher 

provided a statement at the military’s request.   

43. Shortly thereafter, Wascher was asked to investigate unauthorized identification 

cards in the possession of Turkish workers and the lack of the required documentation in their 

BAT dossiers.  Spann confronted Wascher and attempted to intimidate him into dropping that 

investigation.  Spann had a close relationship with two Turkish contractors and was having a 

sexual relationship with the daughter of the owner of one of the contractors.  Plaintiffs believe 

Spann’s intimidation efforts were intended to protect members of Vectrus management and 

possibly the Turkish contractor. 

44. Spann had previously attempted to protect the Turkish contractor by improperly 

directing investigators to back off of an investigation into human trafficking allegations 

involving the use of young Turkish male sex slaves by said contractor on the base and by giving 

the contractor advance notice of raids by the military. 

45. Shortly after he confronted Wascher, Spann told Plaintiffs that he had persuaded 

the military head of BAF, which is known as Garrison Command, to replace SFC Salinas as 

military oversight for FPSC.  SFC Salinas was replaced by James Fox. 

46. Spann directed Plaintiffs not to provide statements or assist in the military’s 

investigation without approval of Vectrus’ HR department.  However, Plaintiffs continued to 

cooperate with the military’s investigation. 
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47. On September 20, 2013, Salinas met with Plaintiffs and advised them that the 

military was continuing to investigate the information they had provided. 

48. On September 24, 2013, Spann announced that Vectrus had terminated Cross.  

The reason that Vectrus gave for Cross’s termination was pretextual.  In fact, Cross was 

terminated in retaliation for reporting and investigating the wrongful conduct by Spann and other 

members of Vectrus management.  On information and belief, because Cross was the lead 

investigator, Spann and others at Vectrus hoped that his termination would send a message to the 

other investigators and stop them from any further cooperation with the military’s investigation.   

49. During this time period – September to October 2013 – other Vectrus employees 

began bringing wrongful conduct to Plaintiffs’ attention, and Plaintiffs observed other illegal 

activities by Vectrus managers. 

50. For example, one employee described to Plaintiffs illegal activities of Spann, 

Daniel, Carl Lynch (“Lynch”), and another investigator, Gary Blanchard (“Blanchard”), 

including control of drugs, alcohol and prostitutes on base, and transferring or terminating 

uncooperative employees who would not go along with their illicit activities, and the employee 

showed Plaintiffs text messages indicating unauthorized activity with classified information.   

51. Plaintiffs also observed that two security investigators, Marc Salazar (“Salazar”) 

and Robert Redd (“Redd”), who were close friends of Spann and Daniel, were conducting 

improper and harassing/abusive interviews, improperly cherry-picking files to investigate, using 

only certain interpreters, and creating inaccurate and incomplete investigation reports.   

52. Plaintiffs reported this information to Vectrus’ HR department, which took no 

steps to stop these illegal activities.  Instead, personnel in Vectrus’ HR department were aware of 

Case 1:15-cv-02418-MEH   Document 97   Filed 08/17/17   USDC Colorado   Page 13 of 30



 

14 

and complicit in Vectus’ retaliation against Plaintiffs because of their whistleblowing and 

cooperation with the military’s investigation of the wrongful conduct. 

53. Plaintiffs also provided information concerning these illegal activities to military 

oversight (Fox) and SFC Salinas. At the military’s request, Plaintiffs provided interviews to the 

Criminal Investigation Division (“CID”), U.S. Army Counter-Intelligence Unit (“CI”), the Air 

Force Office of Special Investigations (“OSI”), and the Judge Advocates General’s Office 

(“JAG”).   

54. Plaintiffs discovered many improprieties with respect to investigation reports 

prepared by Salazar including inadequate reports to support issuance of badges, portions of 

reports deleted from BAT, and alerts being put on dossiers by Salazar using the name of 

Sergeant Justine Shahan (Military Oversight Non-Commissioned Officer in Charge) without her 

knowledge.  They reported these illegal activities to Thomas Robin (“Robin”), Security 

Supervisor for Vectrus, but no action was taken. 

55. Plaintiffs discovered that over 100 BAF badges had been printed without 

necessary investigations or paperwork.  They reported this to Robin, but no action was taken.  

56. Throughout this time period, Plaintiffs met frequently with SFC Salinas at his 

request to update him with further information on these illegal activities as it became available.  

57. On October 18, 2013, Plaintiffs attended a meeting at BAF Brigade Headquarters 

with SFC Salinas, Andrew Albright (a GS15 civilian counterpart to the Commander of the 

Garrison), and Command Sergeant Major Paul Bianco.  Plaintiffs gave statements and discussed 

the seriousness of the wrongful conduct that had been uncovered, including particularly the 

threat to the integrity of the BAT system.  Albright told Plaintiffs that CI was not moving on the 
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information, and therefore the military had decided to call in the FBI and NSA to investigate.  

Plaintiffs were ordered to continue reporting to SFC Salinas as their point of contact and to keep 

the matters discussed in the military’s investigation confidential. 

58. Plaintiffs observed further illegal conduct by Vectrus management employees 

including observing an uncleared person being given access to the FPSC database room, 

observing an uncleared person (the daughter of the owner of a Turkish construction company) 

being given access to Spann and Daniels’ supervisors administrative office, unauthorized Fluor 

employees sitting in on investigations, Spann accessing the military oversight office during 

restricted hours without authorization, Spann and Fox coaching a person on how to lie about an 

incident under investigation, and the cover up of a harassment investigation that involved the 

severe (near death) beating of the complaining female.   

59. During this time period, Plaintiffs gave several interviews to CI and CID 

regarding the various incidents as requested and continued to provide updates to SFC Salinas.   

60. On October 20, 2013, Plaintiffs were told that Fox was leaking information 

(including their initial statements given to OSI) to Spann and Daniel. 

61. Throughout this time period, Plaintiffs and the other security investigators were 

repeatedly threatened and admonished by Spann, Daniel, Salazar, and Redd not to cooperate with 

SFC Salinas’s investigation and to only go through the Vectrus company chain of command.   

62. On October 29, 2013, Wascher was transferred to Forward Operating Base 

(“FOB”) Marmol.  Daniel and two others met Wascher at the airport gate – Daniels stated he was 

“there to make sure Wascher got on his flight.”   
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63. At the end of October 2013, Walker was transferred to FOB Shank.  Daniel had 

Robin call him when the aircraft carrying Walker took off from BAF, and again when it landed 

at FOB Shank to confirm that Walker was gone from BAF. 

64. These FOBs are much more dangerous than BAF in that they took incoming 

rockets on a daily basis.  Spann and Daniel ordered these transfers in retaliation for Walker and 

Wascher’s whistleblowing and ongoing cooperation with the military’s investigation and:  

(a) hoping that they would resign rather than accept the transfers; and (b) knowing that they 

would lose their seniority and that, even if they did not resign, their positions would be 

eliminated in the next draw-down, despite the fact that their BAF seniority would have protected 

them but for the transfers. 

65. At 2:00 a.m. on November 5, 2013, the military conducted a base-wide raid at 

BAF and apprehended eight Vectrus employees:  Daniel, Spann, Lynch, Salazar, Redd, Artan 

Fana, Agron Fana, and Shajaida Rivera.  These eight individuals were removed from the 

Contract and Afghanistan and their security clearances were revoked.   

66. Plaintiffs have learned that these eight Vectrus employees were released in Dubai 

the next day.  Plaintiffs are unaware whether their employment was terminated by Vectrus. 

67. Multiple other Vectrus employees assigned to BAF have been terminated or 

resigned in conjunction with the military’s investigation that resulted from Plaintiffs’ 

whistleblowing. 

68. Brown, a Fluor Country Security Officer, also was removed from the Contract, 

Afghanistan, and had his security clearance revoked by the military.  
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69. In addition, Fox was removed from his position as the FPSC military oversight 

and SFC Salinas was reinstated to that position.  

70. Plaintiffs continued to receive information of additional illegal conduct which 

they provided to the military investigators.  For example, Wascher received a complaint 

regarding a prostitution ring, the possession of electronic devices, and other wrongful conduct, 

implicating Salazar and Blanchard.  Two supervisors were observed discussing their effort to 

gather laptop computers to keep them from the military investigation.  Plaintiffs learned that 

FPSC personnel had been given advance warning of the military raid and told to hide anything 

incriminating.  An interpreter advised of an investigation concerning selling documents and 

coaching local nationals on how to answer questions in interviews.   

71. Vectrus management clearly had identified Plaintiffs as the whistleblowers – they 

pressured Plaintiffs to provide the dossiers on all of the Vectrus employees that had been 

implicated for illegal activities and other information that had been provided to the military, and 

directed Plaintiff not to cooperate with the military investigation but instead only to go through 

Vectrus HR or company chain of command. 

72. On November 21, 2013, Plaintiffs learned that Vectrus improperly made a 

complaint against Cross’s security clearance accusing him of a security violation without 

notifying the Government as required, which was a form of retaliation designed to invalidate 

Cross’s security clearance and prevent him from being able to find employment in another 

position requiring a security clearance.  

73. In November and December 2013, Plaintiffs cooperated with interviews by 

Vectrus Ombudsman (Bridget Bailey) and Employee Relations (Donald Askew); however, they 
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had been ordered by the military not to disclose the information that was the subject of the 

military’s ongoing investigation. 

74. On November 24, 2013, Nadine Guilbeaux, the Vectrus HR representative who 

had been conducting interviews, was terminated for having sexual relationships with Spann.  

Plaintiffs believed that Ms. Guilbeaux had been leaking information from their interviews back 

to Spann.   

75. Diaz, who as Vectrus’ Country Manager was the highest ranking Vectrus 

employee in Afghanistan, spearheaded Vectrus’ internal investigation in November and 

December 2013 into the illegal and illicit activities that Plaintiffs had revealed.  However, this 

internal investigation was not designed to discover and take action against the wrongdoers.  

Instead, Diaz – with the assistance of Bridget Bailey and Donald Askew among others – used the 

investigation to orchestrate a cover-up that was specifically intended to cause injury to the 

Plaintiffs still at BAF because of their whistleblowing and cooperation with the military’s 

investigation of the wrongful conduct. 

76. On November 29, 2013, Cejka and Lytle received Certificates of Achievement 

from the military “for outstanding performance, dedication and support for the mission.” When 

presenting the awards, the military spokesman stated that Cejka and Lytle were the top two 

investigators country wide in terms of the high quality of their investigations and high 

production.  The Certificates state:  

“For outstanding performance and continued dedication and support of the 
Garrison mission at Bagram Airfield.  Your tireless efforts and dedication 
at ECP 1 screening are instrumental in providing an elevated quality of life 
to the Soldiers, Sailors, Airmen, Marines and civilian personnel assigned 
to Bagram.  We thank you for your untiring support of American troops 
and civilians serving in harms way.”  (Exhibits B-C). 
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77. Cejka and Lytle were terminated by Vectrus on December 12, 2013, less than two 

weeks after receiving the Certificates of Achievement from the military.  Vectrus terminated 

Cejka and Lytle in retaliation for their cooperation with the military’s investigation into 

wrongdoing by Vectrus employees.  

78. On February 7, 2014, Cejka, Walker, Washer and Lytle received a letter from 

Andrew Albright, Garrison Command Security Manager at BAF, confirming that they were 

cooperating individuals in a Federal security investigation during the period July 2013 through 

January 2014 involving their employer at BAF.  The letter describes the investigation and the 

importance of the integrity of the BAT system and states that: 

“Many of the cooperating individuals that assisted Federal Security and 
Intelligence investigators were reassigned to remote outstations, or 
terminated by their employer for minor infractions.  Unfortunately, the 
Whistle Blower Protection Act is a slow and cumbersome process.” 
(Exhibits D-G). 

79. Following the November 5 raid, the Bagram FPSC was severely understaffed of 

security investigators as the result of the raid and transfers of Wascher and Walker.  The 

remaining investigators at BAF were conducting two to three times the number of interviews 

prescribed in a given day (the recommended level is 10 interviews per day).   

80. Vectrus management openly discussed the need to transfer additional security 

investigators to BAF to assist with the severe overload; however, they stated on numerous 

occasions that they would not consider transferring Wascher or Walker from the FOBs back to 

BAF even though they were the two most experienced investigators and had expressed a 

willingness to return. 
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81. Plaintiffs reported the illegal actions, corrupt practices and security infractions 

described herein to the military and cooperated with the military’s investigation of said 

wrongdoing which led to the military’s November 5, 2013 raid and arrests.  The military 

conducted further investigations as the result of Plaintiffs’ whistle-blowing, and on information 

and belief, as the result, at least twenty Vectrus employees and others have been removed from 

the Contract and BAF, and had their security clearances revoked.  

82. Wascher was constructively terminated by Vectrus in June 2014.  

83. Walker was constructively terminated by Vectrus on July 12, 2014.  

IV. VECTRUS’ RETALIATION AGAINST PLAINTIFFS 

A. Retaliation Against Paul Cross 

84. Vectrus terminated Cross’s employment on September 13, 2013 without prior 

notice or warning.  His base salary was approximately $150,000 plus benefits. 

85. Vectrus’ stated reason for terminating Cross was that he purportedly violated 

Vectrus’ rules of conduct by disclosing classified information and making a false statement 

during an investigation. 

86. Cross’s termination was blatant retaliation for his whistleblowing and cooperation 

with the military’s investigation of the wrongful conduct.  Vectrus’ reason given for terminating 

him was pretextual.  

87. Because Cross was the lead investigator, Spann and others in Vectrus 

management hoped that his termination would send a message to the other investigators and 

intimidate them from any further investigation into the alterations and deletions made to the 

reports in the BAT system.  
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88. After Vectrus terminated Cross, Vectrus improperly made a complaint against 

Cross’s security clearance accusing him of a security violation without notifying the Government 

as required, which effectively invalidated Cross’s security clearance.  Vectrus’ action was a form 

of retaliation designed to invalidate Cross’s security clearance (even though only the 

Government has authority to terminate a person’s security clearance) and to prevent Cross from 

being able to find employment in another position requiring a security clearance.  

B. Retaliation Against Victor Cejka and Jamie Lytle 

89. Vectrus terminated Cejka and Lytle’s employment on December 12, 2013, 

without prior notice or warning.  Their base salaries were $140,000 and $142,000, respectively, 

plus benefits.   

90. Vectrus’ stated reason for terminating Cejka and Lytle was that they allegedly 

violated Vectrus’ rules of conduct by making a hand gesture toward another investigator on a 

single occasion. 

91. The complaining employee was Redd, a close friend of Spann, who was removed 

by the military from the Contract and Afghanistan during the November 5 raid, as the result of 

the investigation.   

92. Cejka and Lytle’s termination was blatant retaliation for their whistleblowing and 

cooperation with the military’s investigation of the wrongful conduct.  Vectrus’ reason given for 

terminating them was pretextual.   

C. Retaliation Against James Walker and Steven Wascher 

93. Vectrus transferred Walker to FOB Shank and Wascher to FOB Marmol at the 

end of October 2013.  Vectrus subsequently refused to return them to BAF following the 
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November 5 raid even though Walker and Wascher were experienced security investigators and 

BAF was seriously understaffed.  Vectrus did not give reasons for these decisions. 

94. Spann and Daniel ordered the Wascher and Walker transfers in retaliation for 

their whistleblowing and ongoing cooperation with the military’s investigation.  Spann and 

Daniel ordered these transfers:  (a) hoping that Wascher and Walker would resign rather than 

accept the transfers, or hoping they would be killed at the FOBs; and (b) knowing that they 

would lose their seniority and that, even if they did not resign, their positions as security 

investigators would be eliminated in the next draw-down, despite the fact that their BAF 

seniority should have protected them.  

95. Vectrus constructively terminated Wascher’s employment in June of 2014.  

Vectrus’ stated reason – i.e., that Wascher’s position was being eliminated in a draw-down – was 

pretextual.  Wascher’s seniority should have protected him from the draw-down.  After the draw-

down, despite having open security investigator positions and in fact being severely understaffed 

at BAF, Vectrus only offered Wascher a lower position as a Biometric Processing Clerk at 

substantially less pay.  Wascher declined to accept the demotion, and was thus constructively 

terminated.  His base salary was $148,000 plus benefits.   

96. Vectrus terminated Walker’s employment on July 12, 2014.  Vectrus’ stated 

reason – i.e., that Walker’s position was being eliminated in a draw-down – was pretextual.  

Walker’s seniority should have protected him from the draw-down.  After the draw-down, 

despite having open security investigator positions and in fact being severely understaffed at 

BAF, Vectrus only offered Walker a lower position as a Biometric Processing Clerk at 
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substantially less pay.  Walker declined to accept the demotion, and was thus constructively 

terminated.  His base salary was $140,000 plus benefits.   

97. Wascher and Walker’s terminations were blatant retaliation for their 

whistleblowing and cooperation with the military’s investigation of the illegal conduct by 

Vectrus management. 

PATTERN OF RETALIATION 

98. The pattern and timing of Plaintiffs’ transfers and terminations shows a deliberate 

strategy by Vectrus to eliminate Plaintiffs because of their whistleblowing and cooperation with 

the military’s investigation.  Plaintiffs clearly had been identified by Vectrus management as the 

whistleblowers whose reports culminated in the military’s raid on November 5. Vectrus’ 

retaliation was swift.  Vectrus first terminated Cross in September of 2013, when the initial 

wrongdoing was reported.  Vectrus threatened the other four Plaintiffs, then transferred Wascher 

and Walker to the more dangerous FOBs in late October, and finally only about one month later, 

terminated Lytle and Cejka, thus ridding BAF of all five of the whistleblowers. 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
BROUGHT BY ALL PLAINTIFFS 

(WRONGFUL DISCHARGE IN VIOLATION OF PUBLIC POLICY) 
99. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth above in 

paragraphs 1 through 98. 

100. Plaintiffs discovered the illegal actions and security infractions by a group of 

Vectrus employees taking place at BAF described herein, including:  altering and deleting 

information from the BAT security database system; selling of classified information for 

personal gain; taking improper actions to protect a Turkish contractor; interfering with 

investigations; controlling illegal drugs, alcohol and prostitution on the base; transferring or 
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terminating employees who would not cooperate with the illegal activities; and violations of the 

Uniform Code of Military Justice, and other illegal actions, corrupt practices, security infractions 

and fraud by a government contractor.  

101. Plaintiffs reported this information to their supervisors at Vectrus, as well as to 

military oversight (Fox) and SFC Salinas, and at the military’s request provided interviews and 

ongoing cooperation to the Criminal Investigation Division, U.S. Army Counter-Intelligence 

Unit, the Air Force Office of Special Investigations, and the Judge Advocates General’s Office. 

102. Vectrus discharged Plaintiffs in retaliation for reporting the illegal actions and 

security infractions and cooperating with the military’s investigation. 

103. In wrongfully discharging Plaintiffs, Vectrus acted with a specific intent to injure 

Plaintiffs. 

104. Vectrus’ termination of Plaintiffs’ employment violated a clearly expressed public 

policy against retaliation against whistleblowers who attempt to prevent an employer’s 

participation in fraud and deception against the government.   

105. Plaintiffs each had a right or duty based upon clearly expressed public policy to 

object to what they believed in good faith was illegal activity as described more fully herein. 

106. Plaintiffs each have suffered compensatory damages in excess of $75,000, 

exclusive of interest and costs, proximately caused by Vectrus’ wrongful conduct as alleged 

above. 

107. Vectrus’ wrongful conduct alleged above was deliberate, intentional and willful 

and wanton, and therefore Plaintiffs are entitled to an award of punitive damages in an amount to 

be determined by the Jury to deter such conduct in the future. 
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
Brought By All Plaintiffs 

(Violation of 10 U.S.C. § 2409 – Department of Defense 
Whistleblower Statute – Pled In the Alternative to Count I) 

108. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations set forth above in 

paragraphs 1 through 98. 

109. Vectrus is a “subcontractor” as that term is used in 10 U.S.C. § 2409(a). 

110. Vectrus is also a “contractor” as that term is used in 10 U.S.C. § 2409(a). 

111. Plaintiffs exhausted all administrative remedies by filing complaints for 

retaliation against Vectrus with the Department of Defense Inspector General’s Office, which 

closed its investigation prior to the filing of this action. 

112. The Department of Defense whistleblower statute, 10 U.S.C. § 2409, prohibits a 

defense contractor or subcontractor from retaliating against an employee for disclosing to certain 

persons or entities information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross 

mismanagement of a Department of Defense contract or grant, a gross waste of Department 

funds, an abuse of authority relating to a Department contract or grant, a violation of law, rule, or 

regulation related to a Department contract, or a substantial and specific danger to public health 

or safety.  See 10 U.S.C. § 2409(a)(1). 

113. An employee is protected from retaliation if he discloses such information to, 

among others, an authorized official of the Department of Justice, another law enforcement 

agency, or a management official or other employee of the contractor or subcontractor who has 

the responsibility to investigate, discover or address misconduct.  See 10 U.S.C. § 2409(a)(2). 

114. Starting in about August of 2013, Plaintiffs engaged in activity protected by 

Section 2409 by disclosing evidence of certain Vectrus managers’ illegal actions, security 
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infractions, fraud and deception, which posed a threat to the safety and security of those 

stationed at BAF and elsewhere.  

115. Plaintiffs reported this information to Vectrus’ management officials and others at 

Vectrus who had the responsibility to investigate, discover or address misconduct, as well as to 

military oversight, and at the military’s request provided interviews and further information to 

the Criminal Investigation Division, U.S. Army Counter-Intelligence Unit, the Air Force Office 

of Special Investigations, and the Judge Advocates General’s Office. 

116. Vectrus identified Plaintiffs as the whistleblowers whose reports culminated in the 

military’s raid on November 5, 2013. 

117. Vectrus terminated Plaintiffs in retaliation for reporting the illegal actions and 

security infractions. 

118. Vectrus would not have terminated Plaintiffs had they not engaged in protected 

activity under 10 U.S.C. § 2409. 

119. Plaintiffs each have suffered compensatory damages in excess of $75,000, 

exclusive of interest and costs, proximately caused by Vectrus’ wrongful conduct as alleged 

above. 

120. Plaintiffs are entitled to recover their attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses pursuant 

to 10 U.S.C. § 2409(c)(1-2). 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
Brought By Plaintiffs Cross, Walker, and Wascher 

(Outrageous Conduct) 

121. Plaintiffs Cross, Walker, and Wascher reallege and incorporate by reference the 

allegations set forth above in paragraphs 1 through 107. 
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122. Despite Plaintiffs Cross, Walker, and Wascher’s consistently satisfactory 

performance, Vectrus terminated their employment for the improper reasons set forth herein.  

123. Further, Vectrus went above and beyond to provide pretextual post hoc 

justification for its wrongful decisions by using false pretenses to justify the terminations and 

impairment to Cross’s security clearance.  

124. Vectrus’ conduct as described in this Complaint arose out of and was in the 

course of Plaintiffs Cross, Walker, and Wascher’s employment, and was so extreme and 

outrageous as to go beyond the bounds of decency and is regarded as atrocious and intolerable in 

a civilized community.  

125. Vectrus’ actions were extreme and outrageous, deliberate, intentional, and willful 

and wanton, and were done with the specific intent of causing injury and severe emotional 

distress to Plaintiffs Cross, Walker, and Wascher.   

126. Vectrus’ wrongful conduct was the proximate cause of Plaintiffs Cross, Walker, 

and Wascher’s above-mentioned injuries, damages and losses.  

127. Vectrus’s wrongful conduct alleged above was deliberate, intentional and willful 

and wanton, and therefore Plaintiffs Cross, Walker, and Wascher are entitled to an award of 

punitive damages in an amount to be determined by the Jury to deter such conduct in the future.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court enter judgment in their 

favor and against Vectrus on Counts I and II of the Complaint, and in favor of Plaintiffs Cross, 

Walker and Wascher and against Vectrus on Count III of the Complaint, and award them each all 

relief as allowed by law, including, but not limited to the following: 

a. Actual monetary damages as established at trial; 
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b. Compensatory damages, including, but not limited to those for future pecuniary 

and non-pecuniary losses, emotional pain, suffering, inconvenience, mental 

anguish, loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses; 

c. Punitive damages for all claims as allowed by law in an amount to be determined 

at trial; 

d. Pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the highest lawful rate;  

e. Attorney’s fees, costs and expenses;  

f. Such other declaratory and equitable relief as appropriate; and  

g. Such further relief as justice requires. 

PLAINTIFFS DEMAND A JURY TRIAL ON ALL ISSUES SO TRIABLE. 
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DATED:  August 17, 2017 Respectfully submitted, 

VICTOR CEJKA, JAMES WALKER, 
STEVEN WASCHER, JAMIE LYTLE 
and PAUL CROSS 

By:  s/ Raymond W. Martin  
One Of Their Attorneys 

  
 Raymond W. Martin, Esq. 

John M. Fitzpatrick, Esq. 
WHEELER TRIGG O'DONNELL LLP 
370 Seventeenth Street 
Suite 4500 
Denver, Colorado 80202 
Tel: (303) 244-1800 
E-mail: martin@wtotrial.com 
 fitzpatrick@wtotrial.com 

  

 
Steven Hartmann, Esq. 
Terrence J. Sheahan, Esq. 
FREEBORN & PETERS LLP 
311 South Wacker Drive 
Suite 3000 
Chicago, Illinois 60606-6677 
Tel: (312) 360-6528 
E-mail: shartmann@freeborn.com 

  
 Counsel for the Plaintiffs 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE (CM/ECF) 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on August 17, 2017, I electronically filed the foregoing 
FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND with the Clerk of Court using the 
CM/ECF system which will send notification of such filing to the following email addresses: 
 

Anne Kotlarski 
PAYNE & FEARS LLP 
1100 Glendon Avenue 
Suite 1250 
Los Angeles, CA 90024  
ak@paynefears.com 
 

Daniel Lula 
PAYNE & FEARS LLP Jamboree Center 
4 Park Plaza, Suite 1100 
Irvine, CA 92614  
dfl@paynefears.com 
 
Emily Fontelle Keimig 
Sherman & Howard, L.L.C. 
633 17th Street 
Suite 3000 
Denver, CO 80202-3622  
ekeimig@sah.com 
 
Glenn H. Schlabs 
Sherman & Howard, L.L.C 
90 South Cascade Avenue 
Suite 1500 
Colorado Springs, CO 80903  
gschlabs@sah.com 

 

 

s/ Raymond W. Martin 
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3.3 Lead investigator

• PerForms duties of supervisor in their absence

• Serves as supervisor at small to mid size offices

• Assists supervisor with assigned duties and or special projects as required

• Conducts initial, bi-annual, and exit or directed interviews of host and foreign nationals who

apply for or leave employment on US Military installation

• Enters all information into the BAT Dossier

• Collects biometrics and conducts enrollments

• Other duties as assigned/required within the FPSC operations! realm

• Accurately complete the work and records associated with their work assignments as specified

by this DTG and submit them to the Personnel Services Supervisor on a regular basis for review and

approval.

3.4 Investigator

• Conducts initial, bi-annual, and exit or directed interviews of host and foreign nationals who

apply for or leave employment on US military installation

• Supervises Identification Card Office

• Enters data into biometrie HUMINT screening database

• Collects biometrics and conduct enrollments

• Other duties as assigned/required within the FPSC operational realm

• Accurately complete the work and records associated with their work assignments as specified

by this DTG and submit them to the Personnel Services Supervisor an a regular basis for review and

approval.

3.5 Interpreter

• Performs language translation and interpretations during initial, bi-annual, exit and directed

interviews of host and foreign nationals

• Translates Local National and Third Country National personal documentation pertaining to the

enrollment process

• Other duties as assigned/required within the FPSC operational realm

Case 1:15-cv-02418-MEH   Document 97-1   Filed 08/17/17   USDC Colorado   Page 3 of 3



• •

X 1 1

Case 1:15-cv-02418-MEH   Document 97-2   Filed 08/17/17   USDC Colorado   Page 1 of 2



I~
SF

C~
R-
A 
C
 

S
~
 
B
~
1
~
A
~

~
F
~
l
~
~
~
l
S
~
'
'
A

C
E
R
'
I
'
I
F
I
C
A
~
E
 O
F
 A
C
H
I
E
V
E
M
E
N
T
'

Is
 h
er
eb
y 
pr
es
en
te
d 
to

Vi
ct
or
 C
e
j
k
a

~'
or

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, 
a
n
d
 co
nt

in
ue

d 
c~
ed
ic
at
io
n 
a
n
d
s
u
~
 p+
or

t 
of
 't
Fc

e
['

ar
ri

so
n 
mi

ss
io

n 
a
t
 B
a
 r
a
m
 .
~i

 '
 lc
~ 
y
o
u
r
 t
ir

eC
es

s 
e 

or
ts
 a
nd
"c
te
~i
ca
ti
vn
 a
t

g
 
~

M
C
P
 ~
 s
er
ee
rc
in
g 
ar

e 
in
st
ru
me
nt
al
 in
 pr
ov

id
in

g 
a
n
 e
 e
v
a
t
e
d
 qu
aC
it
y 
o~
' C
tf
e 
to

th
e 
So

Cd
ie

rs
, S

ai
Co

rs
, .
~l
ir
me
r~
 .~

vt
ar

in
es

 a
n
d
 ci

vi
C~

,a
np

er
so

nn
el

 a
ss

ig
ne

d t
o

B
a
g
r
a
m
.
 ̀
li

e 
t
h
a
n
k
 y
o
u
 f
o
r
 y
o
u
r
 u
nt

ir
in

g 
su
pp
or
t 
o
f
 .~
tm

er
ic

an
 t
ro

op
s 
a
n
d

Gi
v 
lu
~n
s 
se
rv
in
g 
in
 f
a
r
m
s
 w
a
y
.

~
S
'

~
 

~
i

P
a
u
C
B
.
 ~
3i

an
co

C
S
C
,
 ~.

1S
.~

1
,;
G
a
r
r
~
s
a
n
 C
S.
~I

,~

Ct
~i

s 
Z~
th
 d
a
y
 o
f
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 z
o1

3

~.
~
~
 : 

~ 
~ 

~
~
`

V
i
a
:
 

~,~ 
~ 

,
CC

~L
, 
LC

D.
ti
er
 S
, 
3,

~~
ru

st
ar

t

Case 1:15-cv-02418-MEH   Document 97-2   Filed 08/17/17   USDC Colorado   Page 2 of 2



• 

•

X 1 1

Case 1:15-cv-02418-MEH   Document 97-3   Filed 08/17/17   USDC Colorado   Page 1 of 2



t:;
: `"'
'

j~
;~
 ~,

.,

U
S
,
F
O
l
~-
A
 G
A
R
~
l
 S
 C.
~~
IT
 ~
A
 G
R~
~I
~I

A
 F
G
H
r
A
 ~'

1l
lS
' T
A
 ~'1

t

C
E
R
T
I
F
I
C
A
T
E
 ~
F
 A
~H
I~
~l
~1
VI
E1
1~
T

Is
 ~
7e
re
~~
r 
p~
~~
~e
~z
te
~'
 ~
o

J
a
m
i
e
 ~
 ~
y
~
I
e

,~
'c
~r
 o
u,
ts
ta
ri
d'
rn
;g
 ~
a 

nc
e,
 a
n~
f c

on
t~
~n
ue
c~
 c
f~
d~
ie
at
ic
m 
an
cf
 su
p_
po
rt
 ~
~~
 ~
~~

t~
cs
rr
i~
sc
m 
~s
~c
rn
. c

tt
 

a~
rr
t .

~l
i 

" 
fc
~ 
y
o
u
r
 t
ir
el
es
s 
e 

or
ts
 a
r~
dr
ed
~c
ca
~t
ir
~»
~ 

~.
~

B
a
g
r
 

r~
ie
 

t
~C
.~
 ~
 s
~r
+~
c 

~w
rx
s 
in
rt
~r
~e
tm
er
tt
~a
.C
ir
t p
ro
vi
di
ng
 a
n
 e
 

at
ed
"~
ua
li
t~
 v
~'
 ~~
fe
 t
~~

~,
~~
 S
o
~
~
r
s
,
 Sa

if
o~
s,
 .~
ti
~m
e
n
,
 ~►
d~
ri
rc
es
 a
rc
d c

iv
iE
ia
n~
~r
so
nn
e~
 a
ss
i8
ne
d~
t~

'~ 
B
a
 r

a.
~'
h.
 '
~
~
a
 

r 
or
~r
 

~~
 

si
c 

r,
~~
` ~
 .

.g
ym
 

ca
rt
 ~~

-c
~ 

~°-
te

r 
-

Case 1:15-cv-02418-MEH   Document 97-3   Filed 08/17/17   USDC Colorado   Page 2 of 2



• 

•

X 1 1

Case 1:15-cv-02418-MEH   Document 97-4   Filed 08/17/17   USDC Colorado   Page 1 of 3



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
• ~y` _~ , ~3, UNITED STATES FORCES - AFGHANISTAN, GARRISON BAGRAM

. '~'Z
,~ ~' COMBINED JOINT TASK FORCE-101

,~k,",~^' ̀ J BAGRAM AIRFIELD, AFGHANISTAN APO AE 09354
+~

February 7, 2014

Garrison Command Security Manager

To Whom It May Concern

The purpose of this letter is to clarify that Mr. Victor Cejka was a cooperating
individual in a Federal security investigation from July 2013 that lasted through January
2014 involving Bagram Airfield, Afghanistan involving his employer.

Mr. Cejka assisted in collaborating and validating several complaints about
nefarious contracted security screeners at our main entry control point. According to an
Army counterintelligence report, several security contractors disclosed information from
a classified system, the Biometric Assessment Toolset, to a local national in exchange
for phone cards and other items of value purchased in a local bazaar. Separately, three
witnesses independently reported that contracted security screeners yelled profanities
at a foreign national during a screening interview and made threats against him.

The main entry control point at Bagram Airfield is the base's primary point of
entry. It processes nearly 6,000 Afghan and foreign national workers per day and plays
a significant role in our overall force protection strategy. This strategy includes
maintaining good relations with our Afghan hosts and complying with U.S. and
international obligations on the humane treatment of persons. Contracted security
overly aggressive and threatening interviews with a foreign national undermined that
strategy and violated Army policy, which in turn created an unacceptable force
protection risk.

Protection of classified information and capabilities is also a significant concern,
especially with information that is entrusted to contractors who have regular contacts
with unvetted foreign nationals. This installation relies heavily on the Biometric
Automated Toolset and disclosure of that capability to unauthorized persons for
personal gain is a threat to national security.

Many of the cooperating individuals that assisted Federal Security and
Intelligence investigators were reassigned to remote outstations, or terminated by their
employer for minor infractions. Unfortunately, the Whistle Blower Protection Act is a
slow and cumbersome process.
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hope this letter sufficiently answers your questions regarding Mr. Victor Cejka.
If I may be of any other assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me. My official
email is andrew.h.albright.civ _mail.mil.

Sincerely,

AL B R I G H T./"~ I V ~ BINIGHT.ANDfl W.HENflY.109~9364
19

DREW.HENRY oN:c=US,a=U.S. GOVemmenqu=OoD, ou=PKl, ou=USA,
rn=A LBNIG HT.ANOflE W.HENNY.109 ]9

.1097936419 Ua1e93019.@.1220:2256 t04'AO'

Andrew H. Albright
GG-14, DAC
Command Security Manager
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February 7, 2014

Garrison Command Security Manager

To Whom It May Concern

The purpose of this letter is to clarify that Mr. James Walker was a cooperating
individual in a Federal security investigation from July 2013 that lasted through January
2014 involving Bagram Airfield, Afghanistan involving his employer.

Mr. Walker assisted in collaborating and validating several complaints about
nefarious contracted security screeners at our main entry control point. According to an
Army counterintelligence report, several security contractors disclosed information from
a classified system, the Biometric Assessment Toolset, to a local national in exchange
for phone cards and other items of value purchased in a local bazaar. Separately, three
witnesses independently reported that contracted security screeners yelled profanities
at a foreign national during a screening interview and made threats against him.

The main entry control point at Bagram Airfield is the base's primary point of
entry. It processes nearly 6,000 Afghan and foreign national workers per day and plays
a significant role in our overall force protection strategy. This strategy includes
maintaining good relations with our Afghan hosts and complying with U.S. and
international obligations on the humane treatment of persons. Contracted security
overly aggressive and threatening interviews with a foreign national undermined that
strategy and violated Army policy, which in turn created an unacceptable force
protection risk.

Protection of classified information and capabilities is also a significant concern,
especially with information that is entrusted to contractors who have regular contacts
with unvetted foreign nationals. This installation relies heavily on the Biometric
Automated Toolset and disclosure of that capability to unauthorized persons for
personal gain is a threat to national security.

Many of the cooperating individuals that assisted Federal Security and
Intelligence investigators were reassigned to remote outstations, or terminated by their
employer for minor infractions. Unfortunately, the Whistle Blower Protection Act is a
slow and cumbersome process.
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hope this letter sufficiently answers your questions regarding Mr. Walker. If
may be of any other assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me. My official email
is andrew.h.albright.civ ,mail mil.

Sincerely,

ALBRIGHT.ANDR pLBIfl IGHT.AND EW MENRY.109]916419
EW.HENRY.1097 

oN:~_~s.o-~,.5.~~~,~m~~~,o~_000.
o~=PKl, ou=USA,

cn=ALBRIGHT,ANDflEW.HENNY.109)97641

936419 Date: 3014.03]]3045x48104'30'

Andrew H. Albright
GG-14, DAC
Command Security Manager
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February 7, 2014

Garrison Command Security Manager

To Whom It May Concern

The purpose of this letter is to clarify that Mr. Steve Wascher was a cooperating
individual in a Federal security investigation from July 2013 that lasted through January
2014 involving Bagram Airfield, Afghanistan involving his employer.

Mr. Wascher assisted in collaborating and validating several complaints about
nefarious contracted security screeners at our main entry control point. According to an
Army counterintelligence report, several security contractors disclosed information from
a classified system, the Biometric Assessment Toolset, to a local national in exchange
for phone cards and other items of value purchased in a local bazaar. Separately, three
witnesses independently reported that contracted security screeners yelled profanities
at a foreign national during a screening interview and made threats against him.

The main entry control point at Bagram Airfield is the base's primary point of
entry. It processes nearly 6,000 Afghan and foreign national workers per day and plays
a significant role in our overall force protection strategy. This strategy includes
maintaining good relations with our Afghan hosts and complying with U.S. and
international obligations on the humane treatment of persons. Contracted security
overly aggressive and threatening interviews with a foreign national undermined that
strategy and violated Army policy, which in turn created an unacceptable force
protection risk.

Protection of classified information and capabilities is also a significant concern,
especially with information that is entrusted to contractors who have regular contacts
with unvetted foreign nationals. This installation relies heavily on the Biometric
Automated Toolset and disclosure of that capability to unauthorized persons for
personal gain is a threat to national security.

Many of the cooperating individuals that assisted Federal Security and
Intelligence investigators were reassigned to remote outstations, or terminated by their
employer for minor infractions. Unfortunately, the Whistle Blower Protection Act is a
slow and cumbersome process.
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hope this letter sufficiently answers your questions regarding Mr. Steve
Wascher. If I may be of any other assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me. My
official email is andrew.h.albright.civna,mail.mil.

Sincerely,

ALBRIGHT.AN 
Digilallysignedby
ALBFIGHT.ANDfl EW.HENflY.I D9]93
6419

Q R E W. H E N RY, oN:~_~5.0_~.~.~o~e,~me~~.ou=000. o~=aKt o~<usa,
cn=ALBRICHT.ANDflE W.HENPY.109

1097936419 936419
Dale: 3014 Ol.t 3 30:19:36 a04'30'

Andrew H. Albright
GG-14, DAC
Command Security Manager
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February 7, 2014

Garrison Command Security Manager

To Whom It May Concern

The purpose of this letter is to clarify that Mr. Jamie Lytle was a cooperating
individual in a Federal security investigation from July 2013 that lasted through January
2014 involving Bagram AirField, Afghanistan involving his employer.

Mr. Lytle assisted in collaborating and validating several complaints about
nefarious contracted security screeners at our main entry control point. According to an
Army counterintelligence report, several security contractors disclosed information from
a classified system, the Biometric Assessment Toolset, to a local national in exchange
for phone cards and other items of value purchased in a local bazaar. Separately, three
witnesses independently reported that contracted security screeners yelled profanities
at a foreign national during a screening interview and made threats against him.

The main entry control point at Bagram Airfield is the base's primary point of
entry. It processes nearly 6,000 Afghan and foreign national workers per day and plays
a significant role in our overall force protection strategy. This strategy includes
maintaining good relations with our Afghan hosts and complying with U.S. and
international obligations on the humane treatment of persons. Contracted security
overly aggressive and threatening interviews with a foreign national undermined that
strategy and violated Army policy, which in turn created an unacceptable force
protection risk.

Protection of classified information and capabilities is also a significant concern,
especially with information that is entrusted to contractors who have regular contacts
with unvetted foreign nationals. This installation relies heavily on the Biometric
Automated Toolset and disclosure of that capability to unauthorized persons for
personal gain is a threat to national security.

Many of the cooperating individuals that assisted Federal Security and
Intelligence investigators were reassigned to remote outstations, or terminated by their
employer for minor infractions. Unfortunately, the Whistle Blower Protection Act is a
slow and cumbersome process.
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hope this letter sufficiently answers your questions regarding Mr. Lytle. If I may
be of any other assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me. My official email is
andrew.h.albright.civ(c~mail.mil.

Sincerely,

A L B R I G H T. A N A OIRIGHTl~NDFEW HENRY.10979
36419

DREW .HENRY DN: c=US, a=U.S. Government,o~=000, o~=PKi, o~=usn.
rn=AL~RIGHT.ANO fl E W.H ENflY.10

.1097936419 9J936419
Date: 2019.02.12 ]0:21:21 +04'30'

Andrew H. Albright
GG-14, DAC
Command Security Manager
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